

RWSA BOARD OF DIRECTORS Minutes of Regular Meeting February 25, 2025

A regular meeting of the Rivanna Water and Sewer Authority (RWSA) Board of Directors was
held on Tuesday, February 25, 2025 at 2:15 p.m. at the Rivanna Administration Building, (2nd
Floor Conference Room), 695 Moores Creek Lane, Charlottesville, VA 22902.

Board Members Present: Mike Gaffney, Jeff Richardson, Sam Sanders (arrived at 2:20 p.m.),
 Ann Mallek (arrived at 2:25 p.m.), Brian Pinkston, Quin Lunsford, Lauren Hildebrand.

11

13

8

1

2

3

4

12 **Board Members Absent:** none.

Rivanna Staff Present: Bill Mawyer, David Tungate, Lonnie Wood, Jennifer Whitaker, Betsy
 Nemeth, Daniel Campbell, Scott Schiller, Michelle Simpson, Austin Marrs, Victoria Fort, Brad
 Puffenbarger, Westley Kern, Debra Hoyt, Deborah Anama, Jacob Woodson.

17

19

18 Attorney(s) Present: Valerie Long

20 1. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Gaffney convened the February 25, 2025 regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the
 Rivanna Water and Sewer Authority at 2:15 p.m.

23

25

24 2. AMENDED AGENDA APPROVAL

Mr. Pinkston moved the Board to adopt the amended agenda as presented. Mr. Richardson
seconded the motion, which carried unanimously (5-0). (Mr. Sanders and Ms. Mallek were
absent.)

30 3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS BOARD MEETING ON JANUARY 28, 2025 – AS 31 AMENDED

32

29

Mr. Gaffney stated that there were a number of edits to the previous meeting minutes. He listed
them as follows: Line 372 "rolling" to "rowing," line 542" "RWSA" to "RCC – Rivanna Rowing
Club," line 872 add "a little" knowledge can be a dangerous thing, line 875 "she was doing" to
"Ms. McIlwee was doing," line 878 "the effort she was putting into" to "the effort Ms. McIlwee
was putting into," line 1024 "Rising" to "Raising."

38

39 Mr. Pinkston moved the Board to approve the January 28, 2025 meeting minutes as

40 amended. Mr. Lunsford seconded the motion, which carried unanimously (5-0). (Mr.
41 Sanders and Ms. Mallek were absent.)

- 41 Sanders 42
- 43 4. RECOGNITION
- 44
- 45 There was none.
- 46

47 5. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT

48 49

Bill Mawyer, Executive Director, stated that he wanted to recognize three team members. He

50 stated that first was Brad Puffenbarger, who had recently been promoted to be their new Water

51 Department Manager, a position that oversaw all six of their water treatment plants and 26

52 employees who worked there. He stated that Mr. Puffenbarger had been with them for 13 years

- and had always been part of the Water Department. He stated that they would like to extend their
- congratulations to Mr. Puffenbarger on his promotion and looked forward to the opportunitiesthat came with it.
- 55 t 56

57 Mr. Mawyer stated that they would also like to extend a warm welcome to Westley Kern, their 58 newly hired Communication and Outreach Coordinator. He stated that Mr. Kern was a graduate 59 of James Madison University. He stated that previously, he worked for Charlottesville Area

60 Transit (CAT) and completed an apprenticeship in the HVAC field.

61

62 He stated that their Lab Manager, Patricia Defibaugh, had taken a planned medical leave for an

63 extended period, so Deborah Hoyt will be serving as their Interim Manager during this time.

64 Mr. Mawyer thanked Ms. Hoyt for stepping in and assuming the responsibilities while Ms.

- 65 Defibaugh was on leave for a couple of months.
- 66

67 He stated that they would like to extend their congratulations to Cynthia Dunham, who had

68 successfully passed her Class 2 Water Operator License, and Conrad Wilson, who has passed his

- 69 Class 3 Wastewater License.
- 70

71 Mr. Mawyer stated that he wanted to thank Deborah Anama, Executive Assistant, for organizing

a Super Bowl team-building event as part of their employee and workforce development

73 program. He stated the event featured a cook-off contest, with Katie McIlwee winning the soup

contest with her "New Year's Day Soup" and Leah Beard winning the chili contest with her

"Chili Con Carne." He stated that this event helped their team build camaraderie and get to knowone another.

76 77

78 Mr. Mawyer stated that last week, they celebrated National Engineers' Week, and they would

79 like to recognize and thank their six engineers for their hard work in managing the design and

80 construction of their projects, private development in the community, and utility locations in the

81 community. He stated that they were proud to note that all seven of their engineers, including

82 himself, are registered Professional Engineers in Virginia. He stated that this was a unique

achievement for our organization, and they appreciate the dedication and expertise they bring to

- 84 their team.
- 85

86 Mr. Mawyer stated that last week, the management team met with the Board's subcommittee to

87 discuss the FY26 budget. He stated that Mr. Lunsford and Ms. Hildebrand, along with their staff,

ijoined them to review the proposed budget, which includes debt service for the Capital

89 Improvement Plan (CIP), and operating expenses. He stated that they will present this to the full

90 Board in March. He stated that today they would begin their FY26 budgeting process, and they

91 had the CIP budget to share with the Board. He stated that this five-year plan outlines

92 construction projects that are essential to maintain the Authority's momentum to complete the

- 93 community's water supply plan developed in 2012.
- 94

95 Mr. Mawyer noted that this was a dynamic budgeting process, and their numbers had changed 96 since they initially issued the budget package last week. He stated that the staff continued to look 97 for ways to minimize expenses including recent construction bid prices. Mr. Mawyer stated that 98 the subcommittee's discussion last week provided valuable insights, which staff had incorporated 99 into the proposed budget.

100

101 He stated that regarding their Capital Improvement Plan, he would like to comment on the most 102 critical project in our 5-year CIP, the Central Water Line project. Mr. Mawyer stated that this 103 was brought up during public comment last month by Ms. Smith, and he would like to provide 104 an overview of the project and its significance. He stated that the budget for this project had 105 increased from \$40 million to almost \$80 million. He showed a project diagram. He stated that 106 the history of this project dated back to 1987 and the Southern Loop Agreement, when the City 107 and the Rivanna agreed to strengthen the water distribution piping system. The western branch 108 of the southern loop was built, and the plan was to extend the line to connect near Pantops with 109 the eastern branch of the southern loop. Mr. Mawver stated that the eastern branch was not built. 110 He stated that in 2021, RWSA conducted a study, which was recommended by the Board, to 111 reevaluate the location of the eastern water line. He stated that the study determined that having a 112 major water distribution line only along the urban perimeter would not be effective in supporting 113 the urban water system. He stated that as a result, a new route for the water line was developed 114 and approved by City Council and the RWSA Board in June 2022. He stated that the new 115 location of the water pipe connected to existing piping near Free Bridge and provided a direct route for water to move from the Observatory Water Treatment Plant to the Pantops Water Tank, 116 and thereafter to northern parts of Albemarle and the South Rivanna Water Treatment Plant. 117 118

119 Mr. Mawyer stated that they were currently planning for the Emmett Street Betterment project as a partnership with the City, UVA and VDOT. He stated that as projects were completed along 120 121 Emmett Street in the future, RWSA would install their pipe to connect with existing water in the 122 northern section of Emmett Street. Mr. Mawyer stated that the selected route along Cherry Ave 123 would strengthen the water distribution system within the urban area. He stated that the City's 124 distribution system would be improved. He recalled Mr. Sanders comments at the recent 125 Chamber of Commerce meeting about the three-legged stool concept. Mr. Mawyer emphasized 126 the importance of having all three water components: supply, treatment, and distribution to have 127 an effective water system. Mr. Mawyer stated that the utility had made significant strides in 128 water supply, including the construction of a new dam at Ragged Mountain. He stated that a plan 129 was underway to build a pipe from the South Rivanna Reservoir to Ragged Mountain to fill the 130 new reservoir, which would enhance the water supply. He stated that they had also completed 131 treatment improvements at the Observatory and South Rivanna Treatment Plants. Mr. Mawyer 132 stated that the Central Water Line was a critical component of their water distribution plan, 133 enabling them to deliver drinking water to all parts of the City and County while maintaining 134 water levels in their storage tanks. He stated that the tanks, in turn, helped maintain pressure 135 throughout the entire distribution system. He stated that by pumping water into the tanks, they 136 created pressure that was essential for the entire system to function properly. 137

138 Mr. Pinkston asked how this affected Fire Department services.

Mr. Mawyer stated that with millions of gallons of water stored in tanks, they could support the fire departments in the event of a fire. He stated that the principle behind the old chemistry experiment, where water rises to the same level in a U-tube, applied here. He stated that if they could get water into the tank, it would create the same pressure throughout their system, helping

- 144 to reach higher elevations, such as the second or third floor of a house.
- 145

146 Mr. Mawyer stated that they had successfully completed construction of a new dam at Ragged 147 Mountain and a renovation of the South Rivanna and Observatory Water Treatment Plants. He 148 stated that they had invested close to \$100 million in those projects. Construction of a new pipe 149 from Ragged Mountain to Observatory was currently under construction. He stated that the 150 Observatory Water Treatment Plant was limited by hydraulic constraints due to the small size of the pipes leaving the plant. This limitation would be corrected by the Central Water Line 151 152 project. Mr. Mawyer stated that they could process approximately 10 million gallons per day at the Observatory Treatment Plant, but the urban system's demand was typically around 10 million 153 154 gallons per day. He stated that unfortunately, they could only convey about 7 million gallons 155 from Observatory due to the piping limitation, and they required the Central Water Line to utilize 156 the maximum capacity of 10 million gallons per day. He stated that this meant that they needed both the Observatory and the South Rivanna Water Treatment Plants to operate simultaneously 157 158 to meet the urban system's water demands. Mr. Mawyer stated that currently they relied on both 159 plants to supply water to the urban system, but once the Central Water Line was completed, they 160 would be able to serve the entire urban area solely from the Observatory Treatment Plant or the 161 South Rivanna Treatment Plant. He stated that the importance of this redundancy was evident in the recent incident on January 25 of this year, when a plane crashed on Monacan Drive, just a 162 stone's throw from the South Rivanna Water Treatment plant. Mr. Mawyer stated that the South 163 164 Rivanna Dam and Reservoir were essentially located at the end of the runway of the Charlottesville-Albemarle Airport. He stated that when visiting the reservoir, one could see 165 planes flying overhead frequently. Mr. Mawyer stated that if a plane were to impact the South 166 167 Rivanna Plant, dam, or reservoir, they would rely on the Observatory Treatment Plant. He stated 168 that currently, they also received water production from the North Rivanna Treatment Plant. 169 170 Mr. Mawyer stated that if the South Rivanna Plant and/or South Rivanna reservoir were 171 unavailable, all of Charlottesville and most of Albemarle's developed areas would be impacted. He stated that reflecting on 2022, after determining the best alignment for this pipe, they 172 173 presented five alternatives to City Council in June 2022, showcasing all routes. He stated that the 174 Cherry Avenue route, known as the southern route, was recommended due to its high water system benefits, ease of construction and maintenance. 175 176 177 Mr. Mawyer stated that the Cherry Ave route had a very preliminary estimated construction cost

- 1/7 Mr. Mawyer stated that the Cherry Ave route had a very preliminary estimated construction cost 178 of \$41 million, primarily for reference purposes to evaluate the alternatives. He stated that
- building five miles of major 24-inch and 30-inch piping along Cherry Ave was deemed the
- 180 recommended route, and City Council, as well as the RWSA Board, approved it.
- 181
- 182 Mr. Pinkston asked if the blue at the end of that section was the recent modified route that they
- 183 had discussed.
- 184

- 185 Mr. Mawyer stated that yes, this was a change they had to make in the last year or so. He stated
- 186 that initially, they were planning to proceed down East High Street and partner with the City on a
- 187 piping project in that location, but the subsurface investigation encountered numerous
- 188 underground utilities that made it impractical our large pipe in this location. He stated that as a
- result, they had altered the alignment in the E. High Street area.
- 190
- 191 Mr. Mawyer stated that this was their current plan for construction of the Central Water Line. He 192 stated that in 2024, they received bids for the Ragged Mountain to Observatory Water Treatment
- 193 Pipeline project, which indicated that the initial estimate of \$41 million was significantly under
- budget. He stated that they subsequently increased their Central Water Line budget from \$41
- 195 million to \$67 million based on updated costs. Mr. Mawyer stated that the bid was 30% above
- their initial linear footage estimate, and they factored in the challenges of working within an urban environment to arrive at a revised estimate of \$67 million.
- 198
- Mr. Gaffney stated that all the estimates for the various Central Water Line options would alsohave increased in equivalent.
- 201

202 Mr. Mawyer stated that this was a market change that would have applied to any pipe location.

- He stated that through their collaboration with the City's engineering team over the past year,
- they realized that the design for the pipe was not deep enough in certain areas and would conflict with some of the City's utilities. He stated that initially, they estimated they would need to lower
- the entire pipe, which would have resulted in a total budget of approximately \$82 million.
- 207
- Mr. Mawyer stated that more recently, they continued to work with City staff and found that only about 75% of the pipe needed to be lowered, while 25% could remain at a higher elevation. He stated that this revised estimate lowered their overall project cost to around \$77 million. He stated that although the project had already been advertised, they had paused the procurement process to resolve this issue with the City. Mr. Mawyer stated that they anticipated the
- 213 procurement would receive bids in late March or early April, with the cost shared between the
- Albemarle County Service Authority (ACSA) at 52% and the City at 48%. He stated that this
- 215 gave a glimpse into the collaborative process with City staff.
- 216

He stated that the next slide was a plan view of Cherry Avenue, looking down at Station 121.

- Mr. Mawyer stated that the red line represented the existing sewer pipe running down the middle of the street, while the blue line showed their proposed Central Water Line. He stated that they could see buildings on both sides of the street, including houses with sewer laterals that needed to be connected to the sewer line in the middle of the street. He stated that their engineer initially
- expected that the sewer laterals would connect to the existing sewer line at a 45-degree angle and cross over top of the new water pipe. The Central Water Line would be about a foot and a half
- below the laterals and five feet below the surface.
- 225
- 226 Mr. Mawyer stated that they had recently obtained better subsurface information that suggested 227 these sewer laterals may not be installed at the 45-degree angle consistently and may have a
- these sewer laterals may not be installed at the 45-degree angle consistently and may have a flatter angle resulting in conflicts with the new water pipe. He stated that as a result, they decided
- to lower the pipe an additional 1.5 feet.
- 230

231 Mr. Mawyer stated that this adjustment would place the water line approximately seven feet 232 below grade, providing sufficient space for future laterals to be constructed without being 233 impacted by the location of their water line. He stated that this design would also accommodate 234 gravity flow connections from various types of buildings, including houses, apartment buildings, 235 and commercial buildings, ensuring adequate vertical space for connections without interference 236 from the water line. 237 238 Mr. Pinkston asked for clarification on what would happen during the construction process. He 239 stated that he wanted to know whether the large pipe would be threaded underneath the laterals, 240 or whether the laterals would be removed and the pipe dropped in place. 241 242 Mr. Mawyer stated that this was a question that they were still working on. He stated that the 243 original design anticipated installing the new water pipe under the existing sewer laterals. He 244 stated that however, they had at least 75 laterals to cross along this five-mile stretch of pipe, 245 making it a significant issue. Mr. Mawyer stated that the existing sewer laterals must be 246 supported to prevent them from breaking, and if they were to break, they must be repaired. He 247 stated that they were currently discussing this with Ms. Hildebrand and her staff to determine 248 whether threading the pipe under the laterals was the best solution, or if they should plan to cut 249 and repair the sewer lateral pipes or replace the entire lateral, and how this might impact the 250 project cost. 251 252 Ms. Hildebrand stated that typically, the joints were made of terracotta, which meant they had 253 only two-foot joints. She stated that this must be taken into consideration. 254 255 Ms. Mallek asked if the terracotta were approximately 50 or 70 years old. 256 257 Ms. Hildebrand stated yes, but terracotta was a really good pipe unless it was uncovered. 258 259 Mr. Mawyer stated that typical of urban utilities, the infrastructure they were dealing with was 260 older. He stated that as the City developed and redeveloped, they wanted to ensure there was 261 space for new laterals for new buildings, and that had been part of the discussion. He stated that 262 he was aware that they may need to go deeper. He stated that they were looking at putting the 263 water pipe deeper due to better and newer information, although with a higher cost. 264 265 Mr. Mawyer stated that their consultants based project estimates on recent, similar construction bids, and regionalized those costs for our high-cost area. He stated that some consultants may 266 267 still use traditional estimating manuals which provided costs for labor, equipment, rentals, and material. Mr. Mawyer stated that estimating could be more art than science, influenced by 268 269 supply and demand, contractors' labor and materials, and factors like major federal grant 270 programs. For example, they had received approximately \$10 million in funding, and they were 271 hoping for more. Their community, including UVA and UVA Foundation, had significant 272 construction programs, with one report indicating UVA has \$1 billion in current construction 273 projects. Mr. Mawyer stated that their area had a low unemployment rate of 2.2%. He stated that 274 additionally, regional and national disasters could impact costs. The hurricane that affected 275 Southwest Virginia and North Carolina, as well as floods in Tennessee and Kentucky, and fires in California, all created significant demand for materials and labor which could impact project 276

- 277 costs. Mr. Mawyer stated that the widespread circumstances made it challenging for their
- consultants to estimate costs. He stated that additionally, when staff prepared the CIP, they
- typically took 18 to 24 months after completing the CIP before soliciting bids. He stated that as a
- 280 result, prices had already increased due to the factors mentioned earlier.
- 281

282 Mr. Mawyer stated that their budget became effective on July 1. He stated that however, they 283 had begun their CIP development program in August of last year. He stated that when a project 284 was approved and started in July of 2025, it may not be until spring of 2026 before they 285 requested bids. He stated that he would not debate whether estimating project costs could be 286 improved. He stated that in his 45 years as an engineer, estimating project costs was often 287 challenging. He stated that they updated their budgets almost monthly and reflected these changes in the CIP report, which they included in the Board packet. He stated that they were 288 289 aware of the potential price increases and would address them in subsequent CIP presentations.

290

291 Mr. Mawyer stated that they did not request CIP amendments every time the budget increased; 292 instead, they waited until a bid was received, at which point they could determine if the actual 293 cost had increased. He stated that this was their standard process. He stated that the Central 294 Water Line project in June 2022 had been initially estimated to cost \$1,500 per foot equaling \$41 295 million for five miles of pipe. He stated that in October 2024, they had received a bid for the 296 Ragged Observatory pipe, which indicated a price of \$1,900 per foot for a cross-country project 297 in a rural area. Mr. Mawyer stated that they had decided that this price was too low for an urban 298 project with asphalt, sidewalks, and traffic control requirements, so they escalated the bid to 299 \$2,500 per foot. He stated that at this new price, the estimated cost for the five-mile project had 300 increased to \$67 million. He stated that they then examined the deeper trench and found that if 301 the entire pipe were lowered by two feet, the cost would be \$82 million. He stated that now they 302 expect only about four miles of the pipe needs to be lowered. Mr. Mawyer stated that at an 303 additional \$500 per foot, this portion of the project would cost \$10 million. He stated that they 304 were currently at a point where they were trying to find the most efficient way to complete the 305 project. 306

- 307 Mr. Gaffney asked if they were still working on getting the four miles at two feet, or if it was less308 than four miles.
- 309
- 310 Ms. Hildebrand stated that was where they were.
- 311

312 Mr. Mawyer stated that Ms. Hildebrand had agreed with lowering about four miles of the pipe

- with about 1 mile that did not require the full seven feet of depth.
- 315 Mr. Pinkston asked if they anticipated rock.
- 316

Mr. Mawyer stated that they did anticipate rock. He stated that was part of the additional \$500
per foot cost.

- 320 Mr. Pinkston stated that another factor to consider was the growing number of data centers being
- 321 built in Virginia, which was also impacting construction prices.
- 322

- 323 Mr. Mawyer stated that was a cost factor, as Virginia had the most data centers in the world. 324 325 Mr. Mawyer stated that they had successfully repaired and restored the pipe which transferred 326 water from Sugar Hollow to Ragged Mtn reservoir. 327 328 Mr. Gaffney asked how old that pipe was. 329 330 Ms. Mallek stated the pipe was installed in 1913. 331 332 Mr. Pinkston stated that he wanted to express his gratitude to Mr. Mawyer for his presentation on 333 the Central Water Line. He stated that they would discuss this further in the context of the 334 Capital Improvement Plan, but he wanted to acknowledge the challenge this project posed for all 335 of them. He stated that this was a significant undertaking, as it would run directly through the 336 heart of the City. 337 338 Mr. Pinkston stated that it was crucial that this project was completed, and he was thankful that 339 Mr. Gaffney had provided him with the foundation documents the previous night. He stated that 340 this project aligned with the long-term goal of the urban water plan, which had been approved by 341 Council in 2019. He stated that although the specific routing had not been approved at that time, 342 the City had committed to this project through this central location. He stated that they had 343 actually signed agreements on this matter in 2019, and it was clear that the City recognized the 344 importance and necessity of this project. 345 346 Mr. Pinkston stated that he would like to have an honest discussion about potential ways to 347 mitigate some of these costs. He stated that he appreciated the thoughtful approach and 348 acknowledged that everyone had been acting in good faith. He stated that however, when they 349 had significant budget exceedances, it became a concern that needed to be addressed. 350 351 Mr. Gaffney stated that the project was not yet over budget; rather, there had been an increase in 352 the preliminary estimated costs. 353 354 Mr. Sanders stated that they now knew the project budget in advance of receiving construction 355 bids, rather than afterwards. 356 357 Ms. Mallek stated that knowing the higher project budget three years ago would have provided 358 more significant advance notice. 359 Mr. Mawyer stated that the new budget was essentially the advance notice. Staff had also 360 361 applied the new pricing from the Ragged to Observatory project to the South Rivanna to Ragged Pipeline project, which was seven miles long. When they multiplied the new cost per foot, it 362 363 increased the project budget from \$80 to almost \$120 million. 364 365 Mr. Mawyer stated that upon reviewing the CIP projects, they considered the possibility that many might be under budget and decided to increase them by 20%. He stated that this was a 366 367 major factor in the significant increase in their 5-year CIP budget, which went from \$370 million
- 368 last year to \$550 million this year. He stated that this proactive approach to the proposed budget

- 369 was intended to mitigate the impact of the potential cost increases.
- 371 6. ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC
 - Matters Not Listed for Public Hearing on the Agenda
- 372373

Dede Smith stated that she would like to address what was just stated about the Central Water
Line. She stated that she would like to thank Mr. Mawyer for clarifying, and the map also
confirmed that this project would primarily benefit Pantops and the northern part of the urban

377 system. She stated that she would also like to thank him for clarifying that the Emmett Street

378 pipeline would be built, as it was previously stated to be a barrier.

379

Ms. Smith stated that this pipeline provided many cheaper and more direct options to Pantops
than the southern route. She stated that she would also like to correct Mr. Mawyer, when he
mentioned the initial estimate of \$41 million. She stated that it was actually \$31 million when
they had all the comparative options that he presented. She stated that it was now \$77 million

384 and was likely to go higher. She stated that she would also like to address the issue he brought up 385 about the airplane going down.

386

Ms. Smith stated that she would also like to remind them that I-64, which carries large trucks
with hazardous materials, directly crossed Ragged Mountain Reservoir. She stated that therefore,
discussing hazards to South Fork was not relevant. She stated that she would also like to

- 390 comment on his mention of certified engineers.
- 391

392 Ms. Smith stated that they were now placing water lines below sewer lines, a practice that was 393 once viewed skeptically. She stated that however, they were now implementing it. She stated

that, in the past, this Central Water Line would never have been considered, and it was primarily

being placed in the City's Black and Brown areas; this was simply true.

396

Ms. Smith stated that lastly, when they discussed the water plan with Mr. Pinkston, they may
want to remind him that, in September, after the plan was approved, the pipe between South Fork
and Ragged Mountain was deemed too expensive due to its impact on water rates, it was nothing
compared to the current capital project costs are now. She stated that when discussing capital
projects, she would appreciate it if they could also talk about water rates.

402

4037. RESPONSE TO PUBLIC COMMENTS

404

405 Mr. Sanders asked if Mr. Mawyer had a response to Ms. Smith's concern about placing water
406 lines beneath the sewer lines. He asked why they were proceeding with the project if there was
407 this concern.

408

409 Mr. Mawyer stated that Ms. Smith was correct that it was not advisable to have sewer lines over

410 top of water lines. However, the central water line pipes were bolted together at the ends of the

411 pipe joints to prevent infiltration of any sewer leak. He stated that it was highly unlikely that they

412 would encounter a situation where sewage would get into the water pipes. He stated that when

they had an existing four-inch diameter sewer pipe at three feet of depth, there was no way to get

414 a three-foot diameter water pipe installed above the sewer pipe.

- 415
- 416 Mr. Mawyer stated that according to the Virginia Wastewater regulations, there were specific standards for this type of installation. He stated that they would follow these standards so they 417 418 could ensure proper construction of the water pipes below much smaller sewer lateral pipes. He 419 stated that they could also install separation membranes, concrete, or other barriers where the 420 sewer and water lines crossed to protect the water system from the sewer. 421 422 Mr. Pinkston stated that another point he would like to bring up was that the sewer lines in 423 question were gravity-fed, which meant they were not under pressure. 424 425 Mr. Mawyer stated that was correct. 426 427 Ms. Hildebrand stated that in addition, these lines were serving a customer, which was why they 428 were considered lateral sewer lines. She stated that in their professional opinion, it would be 429 worse if they were located under the Central Water Line, as they would be more difficult to 430 replace. She stated that this was because the household or commercial business responsible for 431 maintaining them would have to navigate the Central Water Line to access the lateral sewer line, 432 making the replacement process more complicated. 433 434 Mr. Mawyer stated that he did not recall an estimate of \$31 million for the Central Water Line. 435 436 Mr. Gaffney stated that when the Southern Water Line was first proposed, he believed it was 437 estimated to be around \$2 or \$3 million in 1987. He stated that it was likely that the cost had 438 increased over the years. 439 440 Mr. Pinkston asked to see the chart with the various data for the Central Water Line. 441 442 Mr. Gaffney stated that ten years ago, it was certainly less. He stated that although it may have 443 still been the beginning of the Central Water Line discussion, prices at that time were lower due 444 to the overall economic conditions. 445 446 8. CONSENT AGENDA 447 448 a. Staff Report on Finance 449 450 b. Staff Report on Operations 451 452 c. Staff Report on CIP Projects 453 454 d. Staff Report on Administration and Communications 455 456 e. Staff Report on Wholesale Metering 457 458 f. Staff Report on Drought Monitoring 459

460 g. Approval of Engineering Services – Glenmore WRRF Upgrades Project – Short Elliot
 461 Hendrickson Inc.

463 Mr. Sanders moved the Board to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. Mr. Pinkston
 464 seconded the motion, which carried unanimously (7-0).

465 466

462

9. CLOSED MEETING

467

468 Mr. Pinkston moved that the Rivanna Water and Sewer Authority enter into a closed 469 session to discuss or consider the acquisition of real property for a public purpose, where discussion in an open meeting would adversely affect the bargaining position or negotiating 470 strategy of the Rivanna Water and Sewer Authority, as permitted by subsection (3) of 471 472 section 2.2-3711(A) of the Code of Virginia, and to discuss the award of a public contract 473 involving the expenditure of public funds, including discussion of the terms or scope of 474 such contract, where discussion in an open session could also adversely affect the 475 bargaining position or negotiating strategy of the Rivanna Water and Sewer Authority, as permitted by subsection (29) of section 2.2-3711(A) of the Code of Virginia.

476 477

478 Ms. Mallek seconded the motion, which carried unanimously (7-0).

479 480

10. CERTIFY CLOSED MEETING

481

482 Mr. Pinkston moved that the Rivanna Water and Sewer Authority certify by recorded vote 483 that the closed session was to discuss or consider the acquisition of real property for a 484 public purpose, where discussion in an open meeting would adversely affect the bargaining 485 position or negotiating strategy of the Rivanna Water and Sewer Authority, as permitted 486 by subsection (3) of section 2.2-3711(A) of the Code of Virginia, and to discuss the award of a public contract involving the expenditure of public funds, including discussion of the 487 488 terms or scope of such contract, where discussion in an open session could also adversely 489 affect the bargaining position or negotiating strategy of the Rivanna Water and Sewer 490 Authority, as permitted by subsection (29) of section 2.2-3711(A) of the Code of Virginia. 491

- 492 Ms. Mallek seconded the motion, which carried unanimously (7-0).493
- 494 11. OTHER BUSINESS
- 495

496 a. Presentation: Introduction of the FY 26 – 30 Capital Improvement Program
497 Jennifer Whitaker, P.E., Director of Engineering and Maintenance

Jennifer Whitaker, P.E., Director of Engineering and Maintenance, stated that she would like
to spend a few minutes reviewing the Capital Improvement Plan development which started
in August. She stated that typically, this process spanned from July to May, with a monthlong break before starting again. She stated that the capital program presented today covered
five years from Fiscal Year 26 through 30.

504

505 Ms. Whitaker stated that the Authority had five goals in its strategic plan. She stated that the

506Authority was established in 1972 to focus on capital asset planning and guidance. She stated507that therefore, planning and infrastructure were fundamental for the Authority. She stated that508this capital improvement plan aimed to address the five key priorities they had identified.

She stated that first, they were working to complete the community water supply plan, which 510 511 had been a topic of discussion for several years. Ms. Whitaker stated that second, they were ensuring that they could provide water service to the entire service area, both currently and in 512 513 the future. She stated that notable projects included the Central Water Line, the Airport Road Water Storage Tank, and the North Rivanna River Crossing. She stated that these projects 514 515 focused on the Authority's ability to provide water throughout the community and to specific areas for future growth. Ms. Whitaker stated the third priority was maintaining water 516 treatment to meet or exceed all regulatory requirements. She stated that the Authority had a 517 518 proven track record of meeting current and future regulatory needs. She stated that fourth, they were addressing wastewater treatment to ensure they met or exceeded environmental 519 520 regulatory requirements, including potential issues like per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances 521 (PFAS), microplastics, and biosolids disposal requirements. She stated that fifth and finally, 522 they were prioritizing environmental stewardship and fiscal responsibility.

524 Ms. Whitaker stated that the proposed capital plan included 71 projects totaling \$551 million. She stated that out of the 71 projects, 63 were construction-related, four were studies, and 525 four were operational, focusing on IT asset management and business operations. Ms. 526 527 Whitaker stated that of the \$551 million, \$313.5 million, or 57% was allocated to urban water 528 projects, aligning with their original goals and objectives for this capital plan which focused 529 on developing a community water supply plan. She stated that the total budget of \$551 million was comprised of \$378 million allocated to the Service Authority, as allocated via 530 531 service and cost share agreements, and \$173 million for the City, representing 31% of the total. She stated that from a funding perspective, they had \$21 million already paid, \$93 532 million in existing debt proceeds, \$41 million in grants and insurance reimbursements, and 533 534 \$383 million in new debt.

536 Ms. Whitaker stated that as a capital asset organization, RWSA was designed to carry debt 537 for the entire community, allowing them to build, bond, maintain, and operate large water and wastewater assets, thereby relieving individual retail customer organizations of the 538 539 burden of bond debt service. She stated that this unique structure enabled RWSA to maintain 540 a wide range of assets, including dams, water supply reservoirs, finished water tanks, treatment plants, and three categories of pump stations. Ms. Whitaker stated that they had 68 541 miles of water pipeline, typically larger diameter. She stated that they also had 44 miles of 542 543 wastewater pipeline, again typically the larger diameter pipelines. She stated that in addition, they operated the stormwater impoundment at Lickinghole. She stated these assets were what 544 they aimed to renew, repair, and rehabilitate in the Capital Improvement Program. She stated 545 546 that their program was designed to ensure the long-term maintenance of these assets for the 547 entire community.

549 Ms. Whitaker stated that these assets were tracked in their Asset Management System and 550 were improved, rehabilitated, or replaced via their Capital Improvement Program. She 551 presented a graphic identifying the underlying need and justification for each capital project

509

523

535

- Ms. Whitaker stated that they were working on capacity projects on both the water and sewer
 systems to ensure they could serve all areas of the community. She stated that operations,
 maintenance, safety, and sustainability, were in a broad category. She further stated that at
 its core, their program was about asset renewal, which included tasks such as tank painting,
 manhole inspection, and reducing inflow and infiltration to keep existing assets in good
 condition.
- 560 Ms. Whitaker stated that they also had several regulatory compliance driven projects, which 561 they would discuss in more detail later. She stated that as operated in a heavily regulated 562 environment, they often had projects that were years in the making or required short notice to 563 meet regulatory requirements.
- 565 Ms. Whitaker stated that finally, they had been discussing the issue of reliability and 566 redundancy for a number of years, which had become increasingly urgent due to climate 567 change and adverse weather conditions. She stated that they strive to ensure that RWSA 568 facilities could continue to operate even under adverse conditions. 569
- 570 Ms. Whitaker stated that they had six water treatment plants. She stated that the three that 571 served the urban service area included Observatory, South Rivanna, and North Rivanna. She 572 stated that the other three plants served smaller portions of their community, including 573 Scottsville, Red Hill, and Crozet. She stated that on the wastewater side, they had a slightly 574 different approach. Ms. Whitaker stated that they had one large wastewater treatment plant, located at Moores Creek, which served the urban community as well as Crozet. She stated 575 that they also had three smaller plants, one serving Glenmore, one serving Scottsville, and a 576 small plant serving Stone Robinson Elementary School, which they contracted operations for 577 the Service Authority and maintained on behalf of the Albemarle County school system. 578
- Ms. Whitaker stated that they had five water supply reservoirs. She stated that they operated
 10 dams, with five water supply reservoirs. She stated that the three largest reservoirs, South
 Fork, Sugar Hollow, and Ragged Mountain, served the urban system. She stated that they had
 two reservoirs, one in Crozet and one in Scottsville, that served the outlying communities
 within their service area.
- Ms. Whitaker stated that the largest portion of their Capital Improvement Plan was dedicated
 to water supply projects. She stated that they had completed the Ragged Mountain Dam
 construction and were upgrading the Observatory and South Rivanna water treatment plants.
 She stated that they were currently constructing the Ragged to Observatory water line and
 pump station.
- Ms. Whitaker stated today they were discussing the Central Water Line, both Phase 1 and
 Phase 2, which was the line that crossed through the City. She stated that they hoped to
 award this project in May, with a 52%/48% cost split between the Service Authority and the
 City, and an estimated cost range of \$77 to \$79 million.
- 596

564

579

585

597 Ms. Whitaker stated that the next project was to raise the Ragged Mountain reservoir water

- level. She stated the dam was originally constructed to reach 12 feet higher than the normal
 pool level, so this project would raise the water level 12 feet and perform all the associated
 ancillary work. She stated that they were hoping to award this project in June of this year,
 with an estimated cost of \$5.5 to \$6 million, split 80%/20% between the Service Authority
 and the City.
- 604 Ms. Whitaker stated that the third project listed here was the South Rivanna to the Ragged 605 Mountain Raw Water Pipeline, Pump Station, and Intake Facility. She stated that this project's estimated cost was \$117 million, also split 80%/20% between the Service Authority 606 607 and the City. Ms. Whitaker stated that finally, they had water quality treatment projects in both Ragged Mountain and South Fork Rivanna Reservoirs. She stated that these included 608 aeration in South Rivanna and a hypolimnetic oxygenation (HLOS) system in Ragged 609 Mountain, which involved introducing oxygen at lower elevations within the reservoir. She 610 stated that these projects helped improve water quality and reduce algae growth. 611
- 612

- Ms. Whitaker stated that they were considering awarding this project potentially in early
 2028, with an estimated cost of \$9 million, split 52%/48% between the Service Authority and
 the City. She stated that overall, the current estimate for these water supply and quality
 projects totaled \$211 million, with the Service Authority's portion being \$144 million and the
 City's portion being \$67 million.
- 619 Mr. Pinkston asked if the water quality project was relatively recent.
- Ms. Whitaker replied no; it had been in the CIP for a long time, but it had not beenhighlighted here.
- 622

623 She stated that given that a significant portion of the CIP was comprised of Community Water Supply Plan projects, they thought it would be useful to briefly review the timeline of 624 how they arrived at this point. She stated that if the Board recalled, in 2001 and 2002, the 625 626 area experienced an 18-month drought of record, which prompted them to begin working on the Community Water Supply Plan in 2003 to ensure the community had a reliable water 627 supply. Ms. Whitaker stated that they worked on this project from 2003 to 2008. She stated 628 629 that although they had initially received permit approval from VDEQ, ongoing community debate delayed full adoption until 2012, when they finally reached a community agreement 630 and a major permit modification. She stated that by 2012, they were able to begin work on 631 632 the construction of the Ragged Mountain Dam, which was completed in 2014.

633 634 Ms. Whitaker stated that in 2018, the Board approved moving forward with the South Rivanna to Ragged Mountain Pipeline project, with a scheduled completion date of 2027 to 635 2035. She stated that in 2023, staff worked on the VWP permit renewal, which had expired 636 in 2023 due to the Department of Environmental Quality's (DEQ) delayed review process. 637 Ms. Whitaker stated that they received a draft permit at the end of last week, which they 638 would review and move forward. She stated that they were nearing completion of the South 639 Rivanna and Observatory Treatment Plant improvements. She stated that in 2024, the Board 640 adopted a new completion date for the South Fork to Ragged Pipeline project, moving it up 641 642 five years from the original 2027 to 2035 timeline to a 2025 to 2030 completion window.

- Ms. Whitaker stated that they were currently under construction on the Ragged Mountain to
 Observatory Pipeline and Pump Station, with a planned completion date of 2029. She stated
 that as currently planned, the entire water supply plan was expected to be completed by 2030.
 She noted that they had a 28- to 30-year time window from the drought to the completion of
 the Community Water Supply Plan projects.
- Ms. Whitaker stated that it was essential to consider the charge increases associated with this CIP. Specifically, Fiscal Year 2026 took the City to a 12.9% charge increase and the Service Authority to a 20.6% charge increase. She stated that the subsequent years' increases were also outlined in this table. She stated that listed were all the assumptions that went into the rate model, which Mr. Wood could elaborate on if needed. She stated that this table provided a detailed explanation of the funding mechanisms and operating assumptions.
- 657 Ms. Whitaker stated that last year, the Board had adopted 64 projects for \$371 million. She stated that the mid-year added authorizations were an additional \$41 million, bringing the 658 659 total adopted CIP budget to \$412 million, compared to the \$551 million budget presented 660 today. She stated that to understand how they arrived at this number, they would begin by reviewing projects completed last year. She stated that they had finished \$15 million worth of 661 projects, which were fully capitalized. She stated that they rolled in approximately \$30 662 663 million of project funding in Fiscal Year 30. She stated that this year, they brought forward one year's worth of funding and added five new projects and four new studies, as well as 664 accounting for market inflation and additions, which totaled around \$110 million. She stated 665 that this breakdown illustrated how they reached the current CIP budget. 666
- 668 Mr. Pinkston asked if the \$111 million for market inflation additions was based on actual 669 bids that were submitted, or if they were based on comparable estimates.
- Ms. Whitaker indicated that several projects were increased based on actual bids on
 comparable projects. The remaining cost increases were predominantly inflation driven, with
 relatively small scope changes within the projects.
- 675 Mr. Pinkston asked if the data were based on comparable information from another project 676 rather than the actual bids received for those specific projects.
- 678 Ms. Whitaker stated that yes, because if the projects had not been bid yet, then they could only rely on projections and comparable projects. She stated that this was similar to the 679 Rivanna to Ragged Mountain pipe project. She stated that as Mr. Mawyer had mentioned, 680 they had added \$40 million to the overall budget. She stated that out of the \$111 million, \$40 681 million was specifically allocated for the South Rivanna to Ragged Mountain Pipeline. She 682 stated that an additional \$20 million was designated for the Central Water Line. When 683 adding these numbers, Ms. Whitaker stated that it did not take long to reach the total of \$111 684 685 million.
- 687 Mr. Pinkston stated that he was wondering if they could get lucky and not get up to the \$111688 million.
- 689

649

656

667

670

674

Ms. Whitaker stated that they frequently discussed this topic. She stated that unfortunately,
what they were seeing in the construction market was that Charlottesville was becoming
increasingly specialized, and as a result, they paid a premium for construction services in this
area.

Mr. Mawyer stated that if they were lucky, the impact would be reflected in next year's
budget; they would not need to borrow as much because they would not have spent as much
this year.

Ms. Whitaker stated that if bids came in lower, they would reduce those projects line items
within the capital plan. She stated that, in fact, at least two projects in the CIP of the 71 had
reductions in cost. She stated that the South Rivanna River Crossing project saw a reduction
of approximately \$1.25 million due to lower-than-expected bids. She stated that this was
possible, although rare in the current bidding environment.

705 Ms. Whitaker stated that when discussing capital projects, one of the obvious targets for cost reduction is the elimination of new items. She stated that it was essential to explain why they 706 needed the new projects and why they were requesting new funding when they already had a 707 708 substantial budget. She stated that they currently had nine new projects, down from the original 11. Ms. Whitaker stated that the four studies listed were mandated by agreement 709 between the Albemarle County Service Authority, the City, and Rivanna. She stated that 710 711 these studies were required at certain fiscal years to project future needs and ensure RWSA 712 was planning projects to meet the community's needs.

714 Ms. Whitaker stated that two of the projects were permit compliance projects. She stated that the first was a disinfection upgrade at the Crozet Water Treatment Plant. She stated that as 715 716 they were completing the granular activated carbon (GAC) design work, the designers 717 reviewed chlorine contact time, a disinfection criterion used by the Health Department. 718 Ms. Whitaker stated that they were compliant, but they found themselves very close to the limit, which made it challenging to operate the plant at higher flow rates or perform 719 maintenance. She stated that by improving the ability to meet the disinfection requirement, 720 721 they could ensure the plant's ability to perform under all circumstances. She stated the other 722 permit-driven compliance project was the Scottsville WRRF modifications. She stated that 723 they recently received a new permit from the Department of Environmental Quality, which 724 included some new conditions. Ms. Whitaker stated that to meet those conditions reliably, 725 they needed to make some upgrades at the plant. She stated that additionally, there were three other projects, two of which aimed at improving their infrastructure reliability. She stated 726 727 that one of these was the South Rivanna Water Treatment Plant's flocculation basin 728 improvements. Ms. Whitaker stated that the flocculator replacements were anticipated to be part of a future upgrade at the South Rivanna Water Treatment Plant, scheduled to begin 729 design in 2030. She stated that the flocculators need a more immediate upgrade, and as such, 730 731 they were moving forward as an independent project. Ms. Whitaker stated that they were also working on a steel repair project at Stone Robinson Elementary School wastewater 732 733 plant. She stated that they were collaborating with the school system to address these repairs. 734 She stated that the final new project on the list was the Airport Road Tank No. 1, which was aimed at providing ongoing service to the northern part of Albemarle County, a need 735

694

704

- identified in the finished Water Master Plan several years ago. Recent review of information
 for the Northern Area Master Plan determined it was time to move forward with this project.
- 739 Mr. Gaffney asked if the tank also supplied pressure to the urban water system.

Ms. Whitaker confirmed that was correct; that was why the 90% Service Authority cost
allocations were in place. She stated that it served to maintain the hydraulic grade line and
pressure within the system, which allows them to take the South Rivanna Plant offline for
maintenance. This is currently a challenge due to the need to keep both the South Rivanna
and Observatory Plants online. She stated that by placing the tank at the northern end of the
system, they can maintain pressure in the northern end of the system.

- Ms. Whitaker presented a 15-year planning horizon table, highlighting the anticipated costs
 for future projects and potential regulations over five-year increments.
- Mr. Lunsford asked if the \$120 million they had listed for the FY 31 to 35 was accurate for
 that time period, or if there were additional projects that needed to be included.
- 754 Ms. Whitaker stated that it was accurate based on current information. She stated that the 755 previous slide presented nine new projects for the current fiscal year. She stated that each year, new projects can be identified through master planning, regulatory changes, or 756 757 identified safety and maintenance concerns. We continue to make every attempt to identify 758 projects as far ahead of their needs as possible. Ms. Whitaker stated they needed to consider 759 new regulatory items that had not been anticipated before. She stated that it was possible that 760 during a period of lower capital expenditures, there could be additional projects added to the 761 plan. She stated that it was essential to include some cushion in the process to account for 762 unforeseen circumstances.
- Mr. Mawyer stated that PFAS and micronutrients were key regulatory uncertainties they
 faced. He stated that they were able to treat drinking water for PFAS, but now EPA was
 exploring the possibility of removing PFAS from wastewater. He stated that this concern
 could be costly in the future.
- Ms. Whitaker stated that they had significant wastewater dollars in the CIP, which was why
 the numbers from FY 36 to 40 were rising rapidly. She stated that this was due to anticipation
 of a major overhaul of the wastewater plant at that time.
- Ms. Whitaker stated that they had already discussed the Community Water Supply Plan
 multiple times, so she would proceed to the next slide. She stated that the Red Hill Water
 Treatment Plan upgrade had already been awarded by the Board and was currently under
 construction. She stated that it was originally a well house that was converted into a water
 treatment plant, requiring additional space to function fully. She stated that this project was
 100% funded by the Service Authority and had a budget of approximately \$2 million.
- She stated that the Crozet Pump Station rehabilitation project involved repair, replacement,
 and improvements to a series of pump stations that brought wastewater from Crozet into the

738

740

747

750

763

768

urban system. Ms. Whitaker stated that these pump stations were built to replace an earlier
process that resulted in discharging wastewater from the treatment plant in Crozet which
flowed into the South Rivanna Reservoir. She stated that the practice was discontinued as
part of a eutrophication project to prevent contamination of the drinking water supply. She
stated that these pump stations were nearing the end of their useful life, so they were
rehabilitating them as part of this project. She stated that this project had already been
awarded and construction would begin shortly, with a total budget of \$12.35 million.

Ms. Whitaker stated that next was the Upper Schenks Branch Sewer Pipe Replacement
Project, which was replacing a 21-inch clay and concrete sewer pipe along McIntire Road
and John Warner Parkway. She stated that they were currently in Phase 4 or 5, and the final
section that needed to be completed was the Upper Schenks Branch Phase 2 project. She
stated that this project spanned from the recycling center along McIntire Road to Preston
Avenue. She stated that the project was entirely funded by the City Utilities budget, with a
total cost of the RWSA section of \$6.4 million.

Ms. Mallek stated that it had been mentioned multiple times in previous reports as being
under negotiation. She stated that from the County's perspective, negotiations had been
completed. She stated that the Board had met numerous times prior to Mr. Richardson's
arrival to address this issue. She stated that therefore, there needed to be a significant amount
of information shared about what was currently in flux regarding this matter.

Ms. Whitaker stated that Ms. Wall, Deputy County Executive, was coordinating with staff on
this project. She stated that she believed they were close to resolving that matter and
answering any outstanding questions. She stated that she would briefly address the next three
projects, as they had freestanding Board reports in the Board packet today. She stated that the
Moores Creek Structural and Concrete Rehab project, which involved rehabilitating
significant amounts of steel and concrete throughout the plant. She stated that the pictures
demonstrated the age and condition of the structures, requiring rehabilitation work.

Ms. Whitaker stated that she would like to next provide some details on the Moores Creek
Building Upfits and Gravity Thickener Improvements project. She stated that the gravity
thickeners were a crucial step in consolidating sludge before sending it to the digester, where
biological sludge was heated for higher degradation efficiency. She stated that the current
chemical feed system was temporary and located outdoors, which was less than ideal due to
weather conditions.

818

825

811

797

Ms. Whitaker stated that they were replacing this set-up with a new chemical addition facility
as part of this project. She stated that every other picture on the right side of the slide showed
existing conditions, including the maintenance department's locker room, which served 16
people and lacked facilities for multiple genders. She stated that the oil and lubricant storage
facility was also in need of upgrade to meet higher fire code standards due to its proximity to
working spaces.

Ms. Whitaker stated that their operator work area for the facility was in the electrical room,
which could be seen in the bottom right picture. She stated that unfortunately, it did not meet

modern fire code and other standards. She stated that the middle picture showed a sanitary
sewer pump station that was housed within the building, where their maintenance staff
worked.

Ms. Whitaker stated that during the summer months, the pump station released hydrogen
sulfide into the building, causing unpleasant odors and potentially hazardous working
conditions. She stated that these facilities were substandard, and she wanted to show them the
current state of their facilities, rather than just the renderings of the proposed upgrades. She
stated that the left-hand picture showed 50% of the building, with a wall separating the
existing space from the proposed workspace.

838

856

865

871

831

Ms. Whitaker stated that by enclosing the existing space, installing walls, changing the floor,
and building a new workspace, they could create a more functional and safe area for their
staff. She stated that they were currently moving forward with the granular activated carbon
project in Crozet, which aimed to expand the treatment capacity of the plant. She stated that
this project was estimated to cost around \$10 million. She stated that they had received
approximately \$7 million in grant funding so far. She stated that if federal grant funding was
withdrawn, they would need to revisit this project.

- Ms. Mallek stated that this would double the output capacity from 1 to 2 million gallons per
 day. She stated that she would like to know if the water supply coming in meets the 1 to 2
 MGD ratio.
- Ms. Whitaker stated that they have the capability to produce two million gallons of water per
 day instantaneously, but they cannot maintain this level of production every day, all the time.
 She stated that this allows them to optimize their operations, enabling them to run shorter
 periods and perform maintenance during off cycles, which provides a great deal of flexibility.
 She stated that this also meant they could release more treated water into the system.
- 857 Ms. Whitaker stated that there is sufficient water supply to meet the needs of the community until sometime between 2045 and 2070. She stated they completed the Crozet Drinking 858 859 Water Infrastructure Plan in 2019. Ms. Whitaker stated that they updated it in 2020 due to 860 significant changes in demand in Crozet that year, largely attributed to the shift to remote work and COVID-19. She stated that in 2021, the County adopted the small area plan for 861 Crozet, prompting another update. She stated that around the same time, they were discussing 862 with DEQ the possibility of bringing the Beaver Creek Reservoir and the Crozet water 863 system under a VWP permit. 864
- Ms. Whitaker stated that they had not previously had a permit, and in 2023, they believed
 that their proposed plan would be sufficient to meet water needs through 2070. She stated
 that however, in 2024, as they finalized the permit, DEQ informed them that their approach
 had changed, and they would need to explore a water supply augmentation sometime beyond
 2045.
- Ms. Whitaker stated that this study will analyze the information, their permit, and allow them
 to determine when, between 2045 and 2070, they will need additional water, how much

- additional water they will need, and where they can find it. She stated that as required by law,
 they would examine all alternatives, considering whether some may be better or worse than
 others, and they will go through the process to identify the most suitable option for supplying
 the remaining water to Crozet.
- 878

892

896

898

906

912

915

879 Ms. Mallek stated that in Ms. Whitaker's analysis, the Crozet Master Plan initially projected 880 a build-out of approximately 16,000 people, and they were now at around 12,000. She asked 881 how this discrepancy fit into the overall picture. She stated that she believed many people 882 were shocked by the cost of pipelines, and she was concerned about the cost of bringing 883 water from either of the rivers, which often had limited supply, especially during dry periods. She stated that given the hundreds of millions of dollars spent on pipelines, she wondered 884 how reasonable it was to continue adding to the population without ensuring a reliable water 885 886 supply to support them.

- Ms. Whitaker stated that they would move forward with this planning study, which was
 intended to take approximately a year to complete. She stated that by doing so, they will be
 able to answer the questions that have been raised, including the carrying capacity of the
 current system and what would be required to exceed that capacity.
- Ms. Mallek asked if the numbers of customers were a factor in their deliberations. She stated
 that this was something that was brought up to her, and she had considered it as she was
 doing her homework today.
- 897 Ms. Whitaker stated that the key point was that population drove demand.

Ms. Mallek stated that was not true for relative costs; \$5 million for 800 people versus \$5
million for 12,000 people were not the same.

Ms. Whitaker stated that what they had seen historically in the urban system was that they
could accommodate more and more people without a change in demand, at least in the last
few years. She stated that it was a matter of examining the specific demands, population
projections, development areas, and working with those factors.

Ms. Mallek stated that she had one final question to ensure she understood the context
correctly. She stated that for the overall cost allocations, she wanted to clarify whether the
12,000 users in Crozet were included in the 52%/48% because they had a separate water
system, or if they were not. She stated that she assumed the cost allocations they were
discussing were related to the growth area, which appeared to be the area being served here.

- 913 Mr. Mawyer stated that all cost allocations for the Crozet project were funded 100% by the914 ACSA.
- 916 Ms. Mallek stated that there was a separate group of individuals with a demand that was not 917 included in the 52%/48% plan that they were discussing for the other projects.
- 918
- 919 Mr. Mawyer stated that the Service Authority and the City had common service areas, but the

920 City would not be involved in water services in Crozet. 921 922 Mr. Lunsford asked when this project was scheduled to be finished. 923 924 Ms. Whitaker stated that they were estimating a one-year timeline, assuming they started in 925 July. She stated that the actual duration may vary depending on how challenging it was to 926 gather all the necessary data. She stated that the expectation would likely fall within the 12-927 to 16-month range. 928 929 Ms. Mallek stated that the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) process was also a 930 component of this. 931 932 Ms. Whitaker stated that was correct. She stated that Beaver Creek Dam had been a topic of 933 discussion for some time. She stated that the proposed replacement involved converting the 934 primary spillway to a labyrinth spillway with a bridge spanning over it. She stated that they 935 were replacing the existing raw water pump station with a new one, as depicted in the bottom 936 right-hand picture, which would be located near the point indicated by the red circle on Beaver Creek. 937 938 939 Ms. Whitaker stated that the new pump station would be situated in a similar location in 940 relationships to the deeper water and dam. She stated that this \$62 million project currently 941 had \$21 million in anticipated federal funding. She stated that they were all awaiting news on 942 the federal funding, and they would continue to provide updates as more information became 943 available. 944 945 Ms. Mallek asked if they would need to perform a considerable amount of land flattening due 946 to the existing grade. 947 948 Victoria Fort, Senior Civil Engineer, stated they would need to grade out a site for the 949 building and, in addition, create parking areas and address surrounding utilities, facilities, and 950 ancillary structures. She stated that to achieve this, they would install retaining walls on both 951 sides of the flat area. She stated that their goal was to minimize the impact on the 952 surrounding vegetation by leaving as much of it intact as possible and incorporating it into 953 the design of the hillside. She stated that, however, they would need to flatten out an area of 954 approximately one acre for the building. 955 956 Ms. Mallek asked if they would be at the water's edge. 957 958 Ms. Fort stated no; the building would be near the water but must be situated outside of the flood zone for a 100-year storm event. 959 960 961 Ms. Whitaker stated that in 2023, they conducted a needs assessment for the Glenmore 962 Wastewater Treatment Plant and established a project to address the rehabilitation work they had discussed. She stated that recently they had been working with the Glenmore community 963 964 on noise and light pollution concerns. 965

- Ms. Whitaker stated that the blowers at this facility were nearing the end of their useful life
 and were quite loud. She stated that one could see the two blowers on the provided slide, and
 they had historically used sound attenuating curtains to mitigate the issue.
 Ms. Whitaker stated that they had moved the UV disinfection and blower systems to a phased
- project, while the remaining work would be completed on the regular schedule. She stated
 that the total cost for this project was estimated at \$8.5 million, and it was 100% funded by
 the ACSA.
- Ms. Whitaker stated that finally, she would discuss the Scottsville Wastewater Treatment
 Plant and Raw Water Pump Station. She stated that the treatment plant was in need of a
 major overhaul. She stated that constructed in 1964, much of the interior remained in its
 original condition, and they were looking at a \$14 million upgrade.
- She stated that to summarize, their capital improvement plan was approximately \$551
 million, with charge increases of 12.9% for the City and 20.6% for Albemarle County
 Service Authority for Fiscal Year 26. She stated that their goals for this capital planning
 process included the five key priorities of the Authority.
- 985
 986 b. Presentation and Vote to Consider Approval of Construction Contract Award and Capital
 987 Improvement Plan Amendment MCAWRRF Structural and Concrete Rehabilitation Project
 988 W.M. Schlosser Company, Inc.
 989 Michelle Simpson, P.E., Senior Civil Engineer
- 989 *Michelle Simpson, P.E., Senior Civil Engineer* 990

Michelle Simpson, P.E., Senior Civil Engineer, stated that she would discuss the Moores
Creek Structural and Concrete Rehab Project construction award and the CIP amendment.
She stated that this project involved repairs throughout the Moores Creek plant, including the
holding ponds, equalization (EQ) basins, primary clarifiers, digesters, and the compost shed
roof, as well as additional drainage. She stated that it also included a new hoist system to
remove the nutrient recycle pumps from the aeration basins.

Ms. Simpson stated that in summary, the total project cost estimate before bidding was \$14
million. She stated that they received two competitive bids in December, and they were
recommending the award of this project to W.M. Schlosser out of Hyattsville, Maryland, in
their contract amount of \$12,967,500. She stated that this award would require a \$4.2 million
CIP amendment, bringing the total CIP budget to \$15.5 million.

1004Ms. Simpson stated that the construction schedule would have them start construction in1005May, with a projected completion time of approximately two years. She stated that the1006holding ponds were two large concrete basins at the back of the plant that held approximately100717 million gallons of wastewater. She stated that constructed in 1977, they played a crucial1008role in their wastewater management program, capturing extraneous flow during wet weather1009events.

1010

979

1011 Ms. Simpson stated that over time, the construction joints had begun to fail and chunks of the

- concrete basins were cracking. She stated that small shrubs had even begun to grow in the
 cracks. She stated that this part of the project would require the contractor to thoroughly
 clean out each basin, repair significant cracked joints, and make all necessary repairs to
 extend the basins' useful life.
- 1016

1027

1032

1044

1017Ms. Simpson stated that the EQ basins were the two large, rectangular basins located outside1018the administration building, which was visible in the picture on the slide. She stated that each1019basin held approximately 2.4 million gallons, totaling 4.8 million gallons between the two.1020She stated that these basins were also important for their wet weather management system.

Ms. Simpson stated that as shown in the sample pictures, they exhibited spalling concrete, which could be easily pierced with a screwdriver, and required frequent repairs to cracks. She stated that the contractor would work on one basin at a time, ensuring that the other remained operational to avoid losing all capacity. She stated that for the primary clarifiers, internal steel repairs were being performed, and the basins were currently covered.

1028Ms. Simpson stated that an odor control scrubber had been installed several years ago, but1029the underlying steel had developed corrosion. She stated that replacement work was1030underway, including the replacement of skimmer arms. She stated that the rest of the1031structural steel will be sandblasted and recoated.

1033Ms. Simpson stated that moving to the aeration basins, a new lifting system was being1034installed for the pumps. She stated that currently, small hoisting systems are used to lift and1035set pumps in place, but this process is time-consuming and requires a crane, which takes up1036the road and necessitates road closures. She stated that the new system will improve1037efficiency and reduce downtime.

- Ms. Simpson stated that it was currently a tedious process to go through all the details, and it
 was time-consuming. She stated that to address this, they were proposing a long monorail
 hoisting system that would span the entire basin, allowing them to lift the pump and transport
 it on the monorail to a truck parked in the road. She stated that this system would be
 significantly more convenient for operations.
- Ms. Simpson stated that next was their compost yard, which was previously used for their 1045 1046 composting operation that was no longer in operation. She stated that it had been repurposed as a covered storage shed. She stated that they stored trucks and other solids under this roof. 1047 Ms. Simpson stated that the roof was in disrepair, with rust and leaks, and the gutter system 1048 1049 was inadequate, resulting in water accumulation underneath. She stated that to address this, they planned to replace the metal roofs and sandblast and paint the metal structure 1050 underneath. She stated that additionally, they were proposing to address structural repairs at 1051 1052 the digester complex, including installing a railing along the roof for safety. Ms. Simpson stated that they were also performing roof repairs and draining and coating the inside of the 1053 sludge storage tank. 1054 1055
- 1056 Ms. Simpson stated that the bids for these projects were competitive, but over the engineers' 1057 estimate. She stated that after negotiating with the contractor, they were able to reduce the

1058	cost by nearly \$900,000. She stated that the main item reduced was the cost of removing
1059	solids from the holding ponds, EQ basins, and digesters. Ms. Simpson stated that they were
1060	able to obtain a different quote from another subcontractor, which resulted in a reduction of
1061	their cleaning costs by \$807,000. She stated that additionally, they were able to reduce the
1062	size of a trench drain, originally intended for the compost shed, by half, which saved
1063	\$898,000. She stated that the original bid for the project was \$13,866,000, but after
1064	negotiations, the new bid was reduced to \$12,967,500.
1065	
1066	Ms. Simpson stated that when they added this reduction to the current Capital Improvement
1067	Plan budget, which had been amended by \$4.2 million, the new Capital Improvement Plan
1068	budget totaled \$15.5 million.
1069	
1070	Mr. Pinkston asked how long this work would take to complete.
1071	in. I miston usked now fong and work would lake to complete.
1072	Ms. Simpson stated that they were estimating about two years.
1073	
1074	Mr. Pinkston asked if they would be phasing the work in order to keep operations going.
1075	
1076	Ms. Simpson stated yes. She stated that with the current setup, it was necessary to work on
1077	one EQ basin, one holding pond, and one primary clarifier at a time. She stated that there was
1078	a process to switch between them, which involved taking one out of service, cleaning it, and
1079	then working on the other. She stated that there were also provisions that allowed for certain
1080	other equipment to be taken out of service simultaneously, without shutting down the entire
1081	plant.
1082	
1083	Ms. Mallek asked if there was a contingency on top of what they were adding, or if the
1084	contractor was held to this. She asked what would happen if the contractor returned with
1085	higher costs for the work done during the project.
1086	inglier costs for the work cone during the project.
1087	Ms. Simpson stated that a 10% contingency for change orders was included in the project
1088	budget. The contract would be awarded for \$12,967,500.
1089	
1090	Ms. Simpson stated that the \$15.5M included the 10% contingency for that contract.
1091	This shipson stated that the \$13.510 mended the 10% contingency for that contract.
1091	Mr. Mawyer said that it was a fixed-price construction contract, unless unforeseen changes or
1092	conditions were identified and approved by RWSA.
1093	conditions were identified and approved by iteration.
1095	Ms. Simpson stated that the contractor would not receive any additional funding unless the
1096	changes were reviewed and approved by the engineer and the owner.
1090	enanges were reviewed and approved by the engineer and the owner.
1097	Ms. Mallek stated that the storage of the old compost yard appeared to have two roof lines
1090	that met in the middle, which seemed to provide a significant amount of surface area. She
1100	stated that it was unclear whether a gutter system was installed in that joint.
1100	succe that it was unclear whether a gutter system was instance in that joint.
1101	Ms. Simpson stated that yes, part of what has failed so far was where those two roof lines
1102	meet, requiring a new gutter system in between.

- 11041105 Ms. Mallek asked if they had considered pushing the pitch of the roof up so the gutter ran on1106 the outside instead.
- 1108 Ms. Simpson stated that they had not considered that, but she assumed it would require a new 1109 structural replacement of the roof.
- 1111 Ms. Hildebrand asked what the engineer's estimates were for the design costs for this project.
- 1113 Ms. Simpson stated that she did not have that information available at the moment, but could 1114 send it to Ms. Hildebrand later.
- 1115

1129

1134

1107

1110

1112

1116 Mr. Pinkston moved the Board to amend the FY 25 – 29 CIP for the MCAWRRF 1117 Structural and Concrete Rehabilitation project to increase the budget by \$4.2 million, which would bring the total CIP budget for this project to \$15.5 million, and to 1118 1119 authorize the Executive Director to award a construction contract for IFB#421 to W.M. Schlosser Company, Inc. for a total amount of \$12,967,500, and to approve any change 1120 orders to the construction contract necessary for completion of the work not to exceed 1121 10% of the original construction contract. Ms. Mallek seconded the motion, which 1122 carried unanimously (7-0). 1123

c. Presentation and Vote to Consider Approval of Construction Contract Award and Capital Improvement Plan Amendment – MCAWRRF Building Upfits and Gravity Thickener
Improvements Project – English Construction Company, Inc.
Michelle Simpson, P.E., Senior Civil Engineer

1130 Michelle Simpson, P.E., Senior Civil Engineer, stated that this project included renovations 1131 to the maintenance and operations office and personnel spaces at the Moores Creek plant to 1132 address staffing needs, as well as improvements to the gravity thickener. She stated that the 1133 initial project estimate before bidding was around \$12 million.

- Ms. Simpson stated that they received two competitive bids in December and were
 recommending an award to English Construction Company of Lynchburg in the amount of
 \$9,631,500. She stated that this award also included a CIP amendment of \$6.65 million,
 bringing the total CIP budget to \$11.8 million. She stated that the construction schedule was
 expected to last approximately two years.
- 1140

1141 Ms. Simpson stated that the first part of this project involved upgrading the blower building and the sludge pumping building, both constructed in 1977, were located across the street 1142 from each other and served as the primary workspaces for operators and operations 1143 management. Ms. Simpson stated that the renovations to these buildings included new 1144 lunchrooms, office spaces, an operator workroom separate from the electrical room, a state-1145 of-the-art laboratory that met current standards, allowing for the conduct of all necessary 1146 tests, new bathrooms, IT space, a brand new locker room, and a temporary work area would 1147 be created in the duty station, located near the Moores Creek pump station. She stated that 1148 this construction would follow a phased approach, where one building was worked on at a 1149

- time, allowing operators to continue working out of the other building and the duty pumpstation simultaneously.
- 1153 Ms. Simpson stated that once the first building was completed, the staff would move back to 1154 that building, and the contractor would work on the second building. She stated that the 1155 existing maintenance building and vehicle maintenance shop, also constructed in 1977, 1156 would undergo renovations. She stated that new lunchrooms, office spaces, a large workroom 1157 with computer setups, a new conference room, bathrooms, IT space, and a new gas and oil 1158 storage area would be added.
- 1159

- Ms. Simpson stated that Ms. Whitaker showed the picture earlier, highlighting the current
 storage arrangement, and the new storage area would be double the size, allowing for a more
 efficient and safer layout. She stated that the area currently open at the end of the vehicle
 maintenance shop would be enclosed, and the new office space, locker rooms, and bathrooms
 would be located in this area.
- Ms. Simpson stated that this project also included six new actuators on the end of the
 aeration basins, and the gates which controlled the flow to the secondary clarifiers, thereby
 aiding in flow management during wet weather management. She stated that the gravity
 thickeners were located nearby. She stated that this project included a new chemical feed
 building, and they would replace the existing polymer tote.
- Ms. Simpson stated that additionally, an additional hypochlorite feed would be provided in the chemical building. She stated that this project also included easier methods for remote filling, allowing trucks to park on the road, fill their chemicals at a remote fill port, and then transport them to the gravity thickeners. She stated that the project included renovations to the gravity sludge line, which would be equipped with clean-outs to facilitate maintenance in the event of clogs.
- 1179 Ms. Simpson stated that the estimated cost of the project was initially around \$7 million, with 1180 English's bid coming in at \$9.8 million. She stated that they worked with the contractor to 1181 identify areas where they could reduce the budget, including relocating windows, removing 1182 access ladders, simplifying the chlorination system, changing the sewer material type from 1183 ductile iron pipe to polyvinyl chloride, and requiring only a small portion of the concrete slab 1184 under the vehicle maintenance shop canopy to be replaced, rather than the entire slab.
- 1185
 1186 Ms. Simpson stated that these changes resulted in a reduction of \$189,500, bringing the
 1187 revised bid amount down to \$9 million. She stated that as a result, they needed to amend the
 1188 CIP budget by \$6.65 million, bringing the total cost to \$11.8 million.
- 1189
- Ms. Hildebrand stated that she noticed this amendment was approximately 129% larger than
 the initial estimates. She stated that she wondered if there was a specific reason for this
 significant increase. She stated that the amount exceeded double the original projections. She
 stated that she recalled that Ms. Whitaker had stated in her presentation, that they were trying
 to avoid scope creep. She asked about the history of this item.
- 1195

Ms. Whitaker stated that there were a couple of reasons. She stated that the sewer line versus
pump station was added later in the project. She stated that initially, they had planned to
build a separate pump station and incorporate the sewer line. She stated that these estimates
were updated in January just before bidding, and they were significantly closer to the actual
bid costs.

1202 Ms. Whitaker stated that upon completing the project and finalizing the details, they found 1203 that the costs came in much closer to the budget. She stated that she believed during the 1204 initial conception of the project, they intended to rehabilitate this building and its frame, and 1205 some of the early cost assessments may not have fully accounted for all the necessary 1206 elements.

Ms. Hildebrand stated that she was trying to follow the mechanical process upgrades
associated with the buildings that were being updated. She stated that they had a
combinations of various systems, such as the actuators at the end of the aeration basin.

Ms. Whitaker stated that the electrical circuit was essentially the same as the rest of the facility. She stated that the vicinity became important because they knew they had the potential to develop the administrative building, the sealed concrete, and the upfitting of those buildings, as well as some work at the front gate. She stated that as a result, they attempted to coordinate multiple projects. She stated that initially they had 18 individual projects underway simultaneously. She stated that they later consolidated this to four, while still trying to organize them geographically.

1220 Ms. Simpson stated that to avoid any overlap, they kept the renovations within their own vicinity.

Mr. Lunsford stated that earlier there was a slide in the CIP presentation that showed \$41 million worth of amendments to the 25-29 CIP. He stated that if he was correct, they were also adding another \$4.2 million and \$6.6 million, which brought the total to almost 17% of the five-year CIP that had been amended.

Mr. Gaffney stated that the additions were amended in this year's current CIP, and included in the future Capital Improvement Plan, which meant that it did not increase the overall CIP amount they had previously seen. He stated that instead, it increased the five-year period they were currently in. He stated that all those additions were accounted for in the \$551M.

- Mr. Mawyer stated that was correct; the funding allowed them to award the contract thisfiscal year, today, rather than waiting until next fiscal year in July.
- 1235 1236

1201

1207

1211

1219

1222

1227

1232

1237

5 Ms. Hildebrand stated that they were within the \$111 M rather than the \$41M.

1238 Mr. Pinkston moved the Board to amend the FY25-29 Capital Improvement Plan for

the MCAWRRF Building Upfits and Gravity Thicker Improvements project to increase
 the budget by \$6,650,000, an amendment which would bring the total CIP budget for

1241 this project to \$11,800,000, and authorize the Executive Director to award a

1242construction contract for IFB#422 to W. English Construction Company, Inc. for a1243total amount of \$9,631,000 and to approve any change orders to the construction1244contract necessary for completion of the work not to exceed 10% of the original1245construction contract award. Ms. Mallek seconded the motion, which carried1246unanimously (7-0).

1247

1250

1260

1276

1282

1248 1249

d. Presentation and Vote to Consider Approval of Construction Contract Award and Capital Improvement Plan Amendment – Administration Building Renovation and Addition Project – Matin Horn, Inc.

1251 Scott Schiller, P.E., Engineering Manager 1252

Scott Schiller, P.E., Engineering Manager, stated that he would be presenting information on
the Administration Building Renovation and Addition Project for the Construction Award
and FY25-FY29 CIP Amendment. He stated that the building they currently occupied was
constructed in the late 1970s and early 1980s, housing their administrative staff since then.
He stated that the Engineering Department was located in a series of four trailers which were
assembled and placed across the parking lot from the existing Administration Building
between 2003 and 2010.

1261 Mr. Schiller stated that due to the age and condition of these facilities, they concluded that renovation and expansion were necessary. He stated that to modernize their facilities, they 1262 aimed to account for staffing needs through the year 2035, update their facilities from the late 1263 1970s and early 1980s construction, and specifically address the laboratory downstairs, 1264 which occupied the majority of the lower portion of the building. He stated that their IT 1265 spaces needed renovations because IT work was drastically different from what it was in the 1266 1980s, and the Board meeting space, currently housed with wood paneling, also required 1267 modernization. He stated that they included space for an educational exhibit in the building 1268 addition. He discussed the revised layout of their lab downstairs, featuring a distinct water 1269 1270 lab and wastewater lab to maintain separation and prevent cross-contamination. Mr. Schiller stated that they had also accounted for shipping and receiving space within the lab itself. 1271 which was crucial for tracking samples that were dropped off. He stated that this included 1272 storage for gas cylinders, chemicals, and workspaces for their chemists, which were 1273 previously scattered throughout the lab. He stated that their goal was to bring this into a more 1274 modern environment and optimize the use of the space they had. 1275

Mr. Schiller stated that they were expanding the Board meeting space, which they were
referring to as a multi-purpose room. He stated that the rendering showed what this room
would look like as a large meeting environment, with a separate setup for Board meetings.
He stated that they were also installing solar panels on both the existing and expanded
building roofs.

1283 Mr. Schiller stated that to determine the space needed for the renovation and addition, they 1284 conducted an extensive building program evaluation, meeting with individual departments to 1285 assess their current staffing levels, projected needs through 2035, and required space for 1286 storage, meeting spaces, IT closets, and other facilities. He stated that their consultant created 1287 a colored area diagram, which informed them that they would need three floors, with specific space allocations for each department. He stated that they also examined actual roomdiagrams to better understand how to utilize the space efficiently.

1291 Mr. Schiller stated that this process allowed them to design the multi-purpose room with 1292 flexibility in mind, enabling it to be used for large meetings, classrooms, or Board meetings, 1293 and ensuring that the layout was optimized for efficient use of the space. He stated that as 1294 part of the process, they also wanted to incorporate an education exhibit within the building. 1295 He stated that this area, located on the first floor of the expansion, was designated as the 1296 educational exhibit space.

1298 Mr. Schiller stated that upon entering the lobby, visitors would find a welcome area with 1299 information about the history of Rivanna. He stated that the space would also include 1300 exhibits on their stewardship within the community and a large area focused on water 1301 science, which was relevant to their mission as a Water and Sewer Authority.

Mr. Schiller stated that the education exhibit space would also feature a wet lab or
instructional learning area with seating and would allow for more in-depth learning
experiences. He stated that the educational space also included interactive exhibits, such as
this example, which showcased the past, present, and future of their authority. He stated that
the exhibit designer was working on the final designs, which were still in the draft stage.

Mr. Schiller stated that the bid package they were presenting today included construction of
the exhibit space and the utility rough-in work. He stated that a separate bid package would
include the exhibit designs, media, and finishes, which were separate from the general
contractor's requirements to build the facility. He stated that they had advertised the project
and received three bids on February 13, with bids ranging from \$22 to \$26 million.

1314 1315

1290

1297

1302

1308

1315 Mr. Schiller stated that they received a final estimate from their engineer in November 2024, 1316 which was approximately \$22.3 million. He stated that the apparent low bid received on that day was from Martin Horn at \$22.1 million. He stated that this low bid was lower than the 1317 engineer's estimate, which was a welcome development. He stated that construction was 1318 1319 anticipated to take place from June 2025 through December 2027. He stated that the CIP 1320 budget was \$20 million. Mr. Schiller stated that their analysis revealed that as they gathered estimates in November and even in the summer, the construction market and inflation were 1321 1322 pushing them closer to the engineer's estimate of \$22.3 million. He stated that as a result, they proactively included this amount in the 2025 to 2029 CIP budget. He stated that this 1323 \$27.6 million was now part of the proposed budget amendment for the 2025 to 2029 CIP, but 1324 1325 was already accounted for in the 2026 to 2030 CIP. He stated that therefore, the proposed 1326 budget amendment was \$7.6 million.

1327 1328

1329

1331

Mr. Mawyer asked if the educational exhibit costs were included in the \$7.6M amendment.

1330 Mr. Schiller stated that was correct.

Ms. Mallek stated that before hiring someone to design an exhibit from scratch, she wasguessing that there were many other places where similar designs were already in use. She

1334 stated that in this case, plagiarism could be beneficial, as it would save them the cost of 1335 creating something that someone else had already paid for. She stated that she would encourage them to visit the Museum of Natural History, which had a wide range of exhibits, 1336 1337 including some that might be of interest to them. 1338 1339 Mr. Mawyer stated that they had an exhibit designer, but would need to hire the actual 1340 exhibit implementer. 1341 1342 Mr. Gaffney stated that he trusted that they would effectively demonstrate in this educational 1343 exhibit how Rivanna fit into the community and ACSA and Charlottesville. 1344 1345 Mr. Schiller stated absolutely. He stated that the idea was to present more information about 1346 RWSA to welcome people into the space and tell the story of the organization. 1347 1348 Ms. Hildebrand asked if they had explored any cost savings opportunities with the contractor, 1349 similar to those they had implemented in previous projects. 1350 1351 Mr. Schiller stated that with this particular project, they did not explore cost savings because the bid was below the engineer's estimate. He stated that this decision was made internally. 1352 1353 He stated that with projects of this nature, the majority of the costs are typically associated with the building envelope and the square footage. Mr. Schiller stated that to find cost 1354 reductions, there would need to be some compromise on the square footage. He stated that 1355 the intent of the program evaluation was to really refine their understanding of the space they 1356 felt was necessary. He stated that given that the project came in below the engineer's 1357 estimate, this decision was made. 1358 1359 1360 Mr. Mawyer asked if they had completed a value engineering assessment. 1361 Mr. Schiller confirmed that they had. He stated they conducted a value engineering workshop 1362 in November of 2023, and as a result, he identified approximately \$380,000 worth of cost 1363 savings. He stated that the evaluation revealed both cost additions and savings, and with all 1364 options included, the net result would have been a cost savings of around \$95,000. He stated 1365 that they went through the options and fine-tuned their choices. He noted that these values 1366 were estimates, and actual bid values may have been different. He stated that at the time, 1367 based on the specific options they selected, they estimated the total cost savings to be around 1368 \$385.000. 1369 1370 Mr. Lunsford stated that Mr. Schiller had mentioned that they accounted for future staff 1371 through 2035. He asked if that was far enough out, being five years after the end of the 1372 project's schedule. 1373 1374 1375 Mr. Schiller stated that the challenge lay in finding a balance between right-sizing the project to make it financially feasible, while also utilizing available information on the Authority's 1376 future plans and strategic priorities. He stated that although they aimed to plan for the year 1377 2050, the further out they looked, the more uncertain the details became. He stated that what 1378 they had discovered, however, was that they could further subdivide the existing office space, 1379

1380 allowing them to accommodate a few more people. He stated that while they could not pinpoint an exact date for completion during the program process, they did have an 1381 opportunity to make progress in the near term. 1382 1383 1384 Mr. Mawyer stated that the succession plan for the organization went out to 2035, so he used 1385 the same data for staffing needs in the building. 1386 1387 Mr. Pinkston asked if there would be a future presentation about the educational exhibit. 1388 1389 Mr. Schiller stated ves; that would be another bid that would be submitted for an award recommendation. He stated that it was within the \$27.6 million Capital Improvement Plan. 1390 1391 1392 Mr. Pinkston moved the Board to amend the FY25 – 30 CIP for the Administration Building Innovation and Addition Project to increase the budget by \$7.6 million, 1393 1394 bringing the total budget to \$27.6 million, and to authorize the Executive Director to award a construction contract to Martin Horn, Inc. for a total amount of \$22,094,000, 1395 and approve any change orders to the construction contract necessary to the work not 1396 1397 to exceed 10% of the original contract amount. Ms. Mallek seconded the motion, which 1398 carried unanimously (7-0). 1399 1400 12. OTHER ITEMS FROM BOARD/STAFF NOT ON THE AGENDA 1401 1402 Ms. Mallek commented that she appreciated the paragraph in the staff report about their work 1403 on conservation. 1404 1405 Mr. Mawyer stated that Ms. Nemeth had worked hard on that. He stated that they had linked the ACSA and City Utilities webpages from the Rivanna website. 1406 1407 1408 Mr. Mawyer stated that as they look at the drought map now it shows our area to be in 1409 normal condition, but he acknowledged it was ever changing. 1410 1411 Ms. Mallek stated that the chart she regularly referred to reported they were 35% down. 1412 1413 **13. ADJOURNMENT** 1414 At 4:32 p.m., Mr. Sanders moved the Board to adjourn the meeting of the Rivanna 1415 Water and Sewer Authority. Mr. Pinkston seconded the motion, which carried 1416 unanimously (7-0). 1417 1418 1419 Respectfully submitted, 1420 1421 1422 Mr/Samuel Sanders 1423